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Chairman’s
Message

&)1l gudno sy

Samir Yaqoob Al Nafisi

Chairman

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful

On behalf of myself and the members of the Board of Directors
of Inovest, | have the pleasure to present to you the annual
report for the group for the fiscal year ending on 31st December
2013.

At the end of 2013, about five years have passed to one of
the worst financial crises, which created a difficult economic
reality. This new reality was accompanied with circumstances
that were not encouraging to investors entering into new green
field investments. At the same level, this situation represented
significant challenges to many economic entities and its effects
were evident in various sectors. It was the destiny of Inovest
to face those circumstances with determination and insistence
on overcoming their challenges, deriving its power from
stability of its assets, amounting to USD 293 Million by the end
of 2013, and stability of its financial position, where the Capital
Adequacy Ratio was 169% compared to the Central Bank of
Bahrain's requirement of 110%.

Performance of the Company

Inovest proceeded its strategy, namely to concentrate on
projects which it established, and in some of them it achieved
remarkable positive developments, most significant of which
is the Durrat Marina project, where development operations
were accelerated during the last year, and development
operations for phase one's residential villas are about to be
completed. Additionally, infrastructural works within phase
one have finished, and work in that regard has shifted to
phase two. Other features of the project have also started to
appear, such as development of the Yacht Club and Marina,
which can host up to 375 boats, distributed between water
and on-land anchorages. Furthermore, cooperation with a
contractor has meant the start of development on the project’s
residential buildings, which include 268 apartments, of which
more than 50% have been successfully sold by the project’s
sales and marketing team to investors from inside and outside
the Kingdom of Bahrain. These recent developments have
encouraged the market and specifically a prominent local
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developer, who owns one of plots within the project; and it is
hoped that the developer will start work on this land within the
first half of 2014,

Furthermore, the financial statements indicated an
improvement in performance of the Group’s other investments,
such as the Labor Accommodation project, which hosts 16
complete buildings; by the end of the year, 8 of those buildings
were sold, at a total value amounting to USD 18.7 million. It
should be noted that the remaining buildings are totally leased
out, and the buildings related to Phase Two are consecutively
being developed from sales and leasing revenues. Today, we
can say that the Project has become self-sufficient.

In addition, the year’s financial statements indicated an
improvement in performance of our subsidiaries, whereas
CIRCO has shifted, after its formative years, into profitability. We
are confident that its performance will be based on continuous
improvement, as we have seen in our other subsidiaries, and in
projects initiated by Inovest. Itis hoped that leasing operations
will be accelerated by Takhzeen Storage & Warehousing
Company, which has already achieved its breakeven status in
its second year of operations. It is expected that Takhzeen will
begin generating profits in 2014.

On another hand, Tamcon Contracting Company continues to
demonstrate its importance as a main contributor within Inovest
Group of Companies, and this is confirmed by the volume
of business it has undertaken and by its solid reputational
equity. This, and it’s rendered services to citizens, has enabled
the company to gain standing and trust with concerned
Government authorities, represented by Ministry of Housing
and developers, Tamcon has seen a significant volume of work
entrusted to it by the Government of Bahrain, making 2013
a fruitful year for Tamcon. The company successfully won
a number of tenders presented by the Ministry of Housing,
whose total value was more than USD 7 milion. These
tenders are related to housing and service projects, and are
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Chairman’s Message

(continued)

distributed across a number of areas within the Kingdom, such
as a housing project in the Northern Province, and another one
in Umm Al Hassam, in addition to a school in Al Haninia Area,
and infrastructural work for a housing project in Samaheej
Area. An important part of these works is related to the use
of funds from the Gulf Marshal Project. Tamcon was able to
complete a volume of work amounting to USD 14 million during
20183, related to Arad and Sanad Housing Projects, and to the
delivery of the Durrat Marina Yacht Club.

These positive developments stem directly from Inovest's
strategy, whose aim has been to boost revenues, ensuring the
liquidity required for stability of the Company. In tandem with
this, the executive management of Inovest exerted arduous
efforts to control expenses and rationalize expenditures, so that
they may be able to be more effective and efficient. These latter
efforts were successful in decreasing the operational expenses
to USD 12 Million by the end of 2013, compared to USD 14.1
Million by the end of the year 2012. The Company's ability to
meet its financial obligations was key during the financial crisis.
The Company managed to reduce its outstanding financing
facilities from USD 101 Million at the end of 2008 to USD 40
Million by the end of 2013.

Future Outlook

With the beginning of the new year, we have begun to see
clear indicators that support grounds for stability of real estate
prices, and approximations seem to indicate they will improve
further, this fact is confirmed by the increased trading volume of
real estate and by announcements of the concerned authorities
in the Kingdom of Bahrain. We have seen reflections of these
improvements in Tameer and its subsidiaries. The phenomenon
of improvement is being felt not only by us in the Kingdom of
Bahrain, but also to various degrees across GCC Countries,
where prices and activities in real estate have begun to stabilize.

The Saudi Arabian Market hosts one of our main projects,
namely the Dannat Resort Development Project in Half Moon
Bay in the Eastern Province. The year 2014 may represent a
window of opportunity to exit this investment at a reasonably
good value by either selling the project to a new investor, or re-
structuring it to be within a new investment fund.

In addition, during the upcoming year, Inovest is planning to
exit a number of private equity investments most of which are
in the field of investment and real estate financing located in
Bahrain and other GCC countries. Through these exits, the
company aims to re-structure its investment portfolio.
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On behalf of members of the Board of Directors, | would like
to express my sincere thanks to our generous shareholders for
their continuous patience and support of the Company, and
for efforts exerted by the Board of Directors and the Executive
Management.

| would also like to express my sincere appreciation to the
investors and strategic partners who played a vital role in
supporting our efforts, and to the employees of Inovest for
their dedication to their work and sincere efforts exerted in
supporting corporate development; and lastly | would like to
thank my colleagues, the members of the Board of Directors for
the precious time and great efforts to overcome the challenges
we have experienced.

We pray to Almighty Allah to support us in achieving more
success. Amen.

On behalf of members of the Board of Directors

»
LN
- ¥

Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
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Managing Director’s
Message

ulbdl auly agal
waiioll §)lall yudao gAac

Ahmed Al Qattan

Managing Director

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

This year has been an important turning point in the course
of Inovest’s corporate development; it has been a year in
which prudent viewers of Inovest’s development will realize
that there has been a validation of the company’s strategy
over the past few years. Inovest has overcome a number of
challenges and hurdles, squeezing loses down noticeably from
US$ 23.288 million in 2011 to US$ 4.946 million at the end of
2013. Today, Inovest stands at the threshold of a new era in its
development, looking towards 2014 with renewed optimism,
and the expectation of a return to solid grounds and a predicted
profitability of US$1.506 million within the first quarter of 2014,

It is important to take a moment to credit the corporate strategy
that has allowed Inovest to reach the positive threshold on
which it stands at the end of 2013. By all standards, the past
year has been an exceptionally challenging one to the executive
management and their implementation of the corporate
strategy. The strategy mandated a three-pronged approach
of expense management, income maximization, and liquidity
management. Navigating this course is no easy feat, and yet
the company managed to do so with no negative repercussions
on the functionality and business development of the Group.
As a result, revenues has risen to US$12 million by the end of
2013 in comparison to US$ 8.58 million at the end of 2012,
whilst expenses have been reduced to US$12 million, from
US$14.2 million at the end of the previous year.

Attention to the present did not deter the executive management
from planting the seeds for future developments. A good deal
of progress has been made on a number of projects, from
which the company hopes to reap concrete value in the near
future. With that in mind, significant development has been
undertaken on the Durrat Marina project; the first phase of the
marina that anchors the project has been completed and will
be assigned to a marina management company for operations
to begin. Tender and award for phase 2 of infrastructural
development are underway, and God willing, will be followed by
a tender for the development of a dedicated commercial strip
which will overlook the marina; and will positively contribute to
the project with a lively environment and atmosphere. This and
other developments in components of the Durrat Marina project
have been met by a marked increase in sales within the project
and are an indication of the company’s ability to meet market
price points. Moreover, this progress has encouraged reputed
developers that own plots within Durrat Marina to begin work
on their respective residential projects.

In a similar context, we refer with pride to the impressive
performance of Tamcon, the Group’s contracting company,
and which by all indications we expect to flourish further. In
fact, at the start of 2014, the company has been able to win
two major bids, at a total value of US$ 39.2 million. This comes
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in addition to the approximated US$ 132.6 million in projects
achieved by 2013 year end, of which a notable US$ 21.2 million
are related to tenders awarded by the Ministry of Housing in the
Kingdom of Bahrain.

Within the year, Tamcon was also able to undertake and
handover work in the value of US$ 14 milion. The ability to
deliver on its promises, as well as the company’s dedication
to the highest levels of service, efficacy and compliance
has earned Tamcon an increasing number of opportunities
throughout the year.

There is no doubt that the past few years in the company
lifetime have been strenuous ones, from the difficulties painted
by the financial crisis which created unconducive conditions
for new investments to investor reservation and conservatism.
The executive management, guided by the Board, dealt with
these realities in a pragmatic manner, focusing on securing the
liquidity required to conduct the company’s business in a timely
manner, and on adjusting expenditures, and dealing efficiently
with the associated costs of financing. With this backdrop, the
overall achievements of 2013 are all the more impressive; they
are briefly summarized as follows:

¢ Inovest enjoys a solid financial standing, our capital adequacy
level is 169% in comparison to the mandated requirement of
110% dictated by the Central Bank of Bahrain.

e |novest maintains a diversified and well managed portfolio of
quality real estate assets.

e |novest has approached the more advanced stages of
development in the timelines of most of its investments,
which allows the company to present realistic exit strategies
to investors in these projects.

It is factors such as these that today allow Inovest the luxury of
saying we are anchored on solid grounds with positive gains
in hand, and the expertise and experience to face tomorrow’s
challenges in good standing.

Last, but not least, | would like to thank all those who have
contributed to and supported Inovest; from its shareholders,
partners, and clients, to my fellow members in the Executive
Management across the Group, and to every staff member
whose dedication and work ethic have been paramount to our
SUCCESS.

We look to the future with optimism and we ask God Almighty
to guide us in all our endeavors.

\_/9-—-_? /\
Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan
Managing Director
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Corporate Governance Report

1. Corporate Governance Structure

The Company is governed by the Commercial Companies
Law promulgate by Legislative Decree No. 21 of 2001
(“Companies Law”), Corporate Governance Code of the
Kingdom of Bahrain (“Governance Code”) , Volume 4 of the
Rule Book of the Central Bank of Bahrain (specifically, the
HC Module) and the Bahrain Stock Exchange Law of 1987,
generally referred to as “Regulations”.

The Company undertakes its responsibility towards its
shareholders by adopting the highest standards of corporate
governance.

The Company believes that the sound implementation of
corporate governance enhances shareholder value, and
provides adequate guidelines to the Board of Directors, its
committees, and Executive Management, in order for them
to perform their duties in a manner that best serves the
Company and its shareholders.

The Company seeks to achieve the highest level of
transparency, accountability and efficient management
through the adoption and pursuit of strategies, objectives and
policies that ensure the fulfillment of its organizational and
ethical responsibilities.

2. Board of Directors

As of 31st December 2013, the Board of Directors comprised
nine members. The members of the Board were elected for a
term of three years, subject to renewal. The term of the Board
shall expire once election takes place during the coming
General Assembly meeting in March 2014.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee formed by
the Board of Directors reviews the skills and qualifications
that the prospective members of the Board of Directors must
possess. The General Assembly elects the new candidate after
obtaining majority votes in the ballot held for such purpose.
Responsibilities are distributed across the Board of Directors
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and
the Commercial Companies Law. Membership of the Board
of Directors may be nullified in case, inter alia, the member
commits a crime, breaches trust or is declared bankrupt.

The chairman of the Board of Directors oversees the activities
of Executive Management and evaluates its performance
regularly, in addition to his other responsibilities that include
chairing Board meetings monitoring the performance of the
managing director, and communication with shareholders.
The Board of Directors has formed certain committees with
specific powers for the purpose of guiding the management
team, supervising the running of operations and taking
decisions in the Company. The Board of Directors supervises
the Company’s management directly & through its various
committees.

The Board of Directors has specified and segregated
responsibilities between the Board and the Executive
Management. The Board oversees all the activities of the
Company and approves the same. It is responsible for Risk
Management, the preparation of financial statements and
corporate governance. The other issues that require approval
ofthe Board include, inter alia, approval of financial statements,
acquisitions and exits. The Board also ensures observance of
the basic values of the Company, as prescribed in the internal
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policies of the Company.

The Risk Management Committee, reporting to the Board
of Directors, annually reviews and updates all Company
policies.  In co-ordination with the Internal Audit Unit,
the Risk Management Unit follows-up the updating and
implementation of the policies and procedures under the
supervision of the relevant committees. The Board of Directors
is also responsible for approving Related Party transactions,
subject to the schedule of powers adopted by the Company.
Related Party transactions that are transacted by members of
the Board of Directors, in addition to any major transactions
undertaken by the Company that requires approval of the
Board of Directors, must be approved by the Executive
Committee. The Board of Directors is also responsible
for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Company. The duties, assignments and responsibilities of the
Board of Directors have been detailed within the corporate
governance framework of the Company.

The members of the Board may communicate with the
Company’s Executive Management at all times. The Managing
Director, in cooperation with the management team, shall
monitor the Company’s performance with regard to specific
objectives and shall conduct the Company’s daily affairs
pursuant to the policies, objectives, strategies and guidelines
adopted and approved by the Board of Directors from time
to time.

The Board of Directors consists of non-executive members
and one independent member among a total of nine
members. The independent Board member must have
highly professional and specialized experience in his field of
specialization and in the financial field.

3. Members of the Board of Directors and
their other memberships

Date of the
end of current | Notes
session

Date of First
Appointment

Member

Samir Yagoob 2 June Non-continuous

Al-Nafisi 2002 . membership
Upcoming

Fareed Soud 2 June AGM where Non-continuous

Al-Fozan 2002 2013 Annual membership

Ahmed Rashe | 2 June report is Non-continuous

Al-Qattan 2002 expected 0 | embership

be approved.

Abdulrahman 14 February
Yousif Fakhro 2010

Mohammed

Ebrahim Al- ;8 May -

Nughaimish

Jamal Abdul

Rahman Al- 23 February -
. 2005

Rowaiyeh

Bashar Naser 29 March i

Al-Tuwaijri 2011

Dr. Mohammed

Abdulla Fahad gg:\farch -

Al-Madii

Talal Khalid 19 February )

Al-Nesef 2007
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

4. Board members shareholding in the
Company

As of 31st December 2013, non-executive Board members
collectively held 7,213,016 shares in the Bank.

5.2 Shareholders Who Own 5% of Company’s Shares or
More

The following schedule shows number and names of shareholders
who own 5% of Company’s shares or more:

Shareholders ‘ Number of ‘ _— ‘ Ownership
Number of | Number of SIS Percentage
Shares Shares A-Muthana investment | 7 146 384 | kuwait | 16.56
as at 31 as at 31 Movement Company T
December December Dubai Islamic Bank 19,748,883 UAE 6.89
2012 2013 ;
Alwatani Investment 16.060 251 Kuwait 5.61
; Company T )
imgﬁz ?QOOb 474,723 474,723 - 0.17
Fareed Soud 5.3 Distribution of Share Ownership per Quantity
Air,fszanou 962,650 | 962,650 - 0.34
The following schedule shows the distribution of share ownership
ﬁrgsg;%hed 200,511 200,511 } 007 as of 31st December 2013 as per shareholding size:
Abdulrahman
Yousif Fakhro 49,530 49,530 ) 002 Cateqories: Number of Number of Ownership
9 . shares Shareholders Percentage
Mohammed
Ebrahim 78,050 78,050 - 0.03
Al-Nughaimish Less than 1% 127,961,403 | 948 44.66
Jamal Abdul 1% up to less than
Rahman 230,238 | 230,238 . 0.08 5% 75,292,304 | 14 26.28
Al-Rowaiyeh
5% up to less than
35,809,134 2 12.5
Pashar Naser 78,050 78,050 . 0.03 10%
Al-Tuwaijri 10% ol =
© UP 1O less than
47,448,384 | 1 16.56
2; d'\ﬂfl’:ir;r:ggd 5045104 | 5045104 | - 1.76 50%
Total 286,511,225 | 965 100
La'a' ﬁfha"d A 94,160 94,160 - 0.03 . )
ese 6. Board of Directors Committees
Total 7,213,016 7,213,016 - 2.53

5. Distribution of Shareholding
5.1 Distribution of Shares per Nationality
As of 31 December 2013, the Company’s records show that there

were 965 shareholders who own in total 286,511,225 shares.
Following is the distribution of shares in the Bank per nationality:

Nationality ‘ Number of Shares ‘ Ownership Percentage
Bahraini 20,796,605 7.26
Non-Bahraini 265,714,620 92.74
Total 286,511,225 100
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The Board of Directors formed four committees having specific
assignments and powers:

Executive Committee

DY —. Position
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi | Chairman
ﬁ:wmed Rashed Viﬁe, *  Approve Investment
-Qattan Chairman Transactions
Talal Khalid Al-Nesef Member *  SetInvestment Limits
e Set Investment Policy
Abdul Rahman Yousif Member o Manage Assets &
Fakhro Liabilities
o Manage Relationships
with Regulators
Bashar Naser ° Manage Off-Balance
. Member Sheet Items.
Al-Tuwaijri
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

Audit Committee Members Position

Fareed Soud Al-Fozan Chairman

Mohammed Ebrahim

Vice Chairman Internal Audit

L]
Al-Nughaimish e External Audit

e  Compliance
Dr. Mohammeq Abdulla Member . Anti-Money
Fahad Al-Madi :

Laundering
Jamal Abdul Rahman
Member

Al-Rowaiyeh

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee
Members

Position

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi Chairman e Compensation &
Vi Benefits

Fareed Soud Al-Fozan ice o Management Issues
Chairman

° Governance &
Compliance

Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan Member ° Human Resources

Risk Committee Members Position IESS

Mohammed Ebrahim Chairman

Al-Nughaimish

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Vice )

Fahad Al-Madi Chairman | ®  RiskManagement
° Risk Management

Fareed Soud Al-Fozan Member Policy

Jamal Abdul Rahman Member

Al-Rowaiyeh

The meetings of the Board of Directors and those of the committees
are held when needed, in accordance with the procedures issued
for such purpose. The Board of Directors meets no less than once
every quarter. During 2013, the Board met five times; the Annual
General Meeting of the Company was held on 31st March 2013.

The Audit Committee held four meetings, the Executive Committee
three meetings, Appointments and Remuneration Committee three
meetings and the Risk Management Committee three meetings.

The Board of Directors and the committees formed by it receive
periodical reports from Executive Management on all aspects
of the Company’s activities. The Board also receives periodical
reports from the Internal Audit Unit, Risk Management Unit, and
Finance Department.

Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al-Nafisi has extensive management experience in a number
of different sectors including trading, manufacturing and financial
services. He is currently General Manager of Yagoob Al-Nafisi &
Sons Company, and former General Manager of Al-Nafisi Trading
Company, both based in Kuwait.
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Prior to this, he held managerial positions at Kuwait Commercial
Bank and Kuwait Insulating Materials Manufacturing Company. Mr.
Al-Nafisi has equally extensive experience of serving on the Boards
of numerous financial institutions and companies in the GCC.

He is currently the Chairman of Al Khaleej Development Company
(Bahrain), Muthana Investment Company (Kuwait), Vice Chairman
of Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait), and formerly a Board member
of Gulf Investment House (Kuwait), and Khaleeji Commercial Bank
(Bahrain), Gulf Finance House (Bahrain), and International Turnkey
Systems (Kuwait).

Fareed Soud Al Fozan
Board Member and Vice Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al-Fozan is currently the Vice-chairman of Gulf Group Holding
Company a Kuwaiti based company that owns a number of
specialist companies strategically located throughout the GCC
countries. He is a board member on a number of investment, real
estate and financial companies, namely: Boubyan Bank (Kuwait),
Gulf Real Estate (Saudi Arabia), Amlak Real Estate Co. (Kuwait)
SAFCORP (Kuwait) and Al Khaleej Development Company BSC
(Bahrain).

He is also the Chairman of Young Arab Leaders Organization
Kuwait Chapter (an NGO). Mr. Al-Fozan graduated from Kuwait
University with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
majoring in Banking and Finance.

Abdulrahman Fakhro

Board Member - Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Fakhro has a long standing and successful history as a board
member and executive within numerous organizations. Mr. Fakhro
is the current Chairman of Yusif Bin Yusif Fakhro B. S. C . and of
the Bahrain Commercial Facilities Company. Additionally he is a
Board Member in the Bahrain Flour Mills Co. B.S.C. and in General
Organization for Social Insurance ( SIO ); in the latter he also holds
the position of Investment Committee Chairman.
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(continued)

Mohammed Ebrahim Al Nughaimish
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mohammed Alnughaimish, holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from Maastricht School of Business. Mr.
Alnughaimish, who joined GIH in early 2002, is a Senior Manager,
running the International Fund Department (IFD) and handling the
Private Equity projects in DID.

Mr. Alnughaimish has held a number of positions such as a
member of the board of directors in the Excellence Education Co.
(Kuwait), as well as in Stronghaven, Inc. (USA) and Halcor (USA).
He is currently a board member in Arkan AlKuwait Real Estate
Co. (Kuwait) and in Gulf Real Estate (Saudi Arabia), as well as in
Inovest (Bahrain), Tameer (Bahrain), and Durrat Marina (Bahrain),
and Transocean Capital, Inc. (USA).

Jamal Abdul Rahman Al Rowaiyeh
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al-Rowaih has over 25 years of experience in the real estate
sector, managing the extensive Al-Rowaih family real estate
portfolio. He also holds the position of General Manager in Razan
General Trading and Contracting and Razan International Real
Estate specializing in various real estate trading, acquisitions,
leasing and management of properties. Mr. Al-Rowaih also
founded and contributed to a number of project funds in various
sectors such as real estate, industrial and finance with a regional
spread in Saudi Arabia, Bahrain, Lebanon, Dubai and Oman.

Mr. Al-Rowaih graduated in 1980 with Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration Faculty of Commerce and Economics and Political
Science from Kuwait University.

Bashar Naser Al Tuwaijri
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Bashar Naser Al Tuwaijri holds a Bachelor Degree in Banking and
Finance from Kuwait University. Mr. Al Tuwaijri joined GIH in 2004
and is currently the Senior Vice President of Direct Investment,
Investment Funds and Investment Placement.

Prior to that, Mr. Al Tuwaijri has held the position of Vice Chairman of
Amar Finance and Leasing Co., Kuwait, Vice Chairman of Madain
Property Co., Dubai, Board member of Afkar holdings kuwait.
Mr. Al Tuwaijri is also the Vice Chairman of Majan Development
Co., Oman. From 1996 to 2003, he held several positions at NBK
before being appointed Corporate Credit Manager.

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Al Madhi
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Dr. Mohammed Al-Madhi is currently a board member of the
Public Pension Agency and also a board member in Raidah
Investment Company. Dr. Al Madhi has a vast experience in the
academic and military fields. He held various positions in Saudi
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Arabian Ministry of Defense & Aviation (MODA) from 1962 to 1990.
In 1991, Dr. Al-Madhi held the position of consultant to the CEO
in government relations at Advanced Electronic Company in Saudi
Arabia. In addition,

Mr. Al-Madhi used to be a part time instructor in various military
and civilian educational institutions.

Mr. Al-Madhi holds a Doctorate of Philosophy in Political Science
& Public Administration from lllinois University in USA (1975).
Before that, he gained his Master of Public Administration in 1970
from the University of Kansas in USA. His Bachelor degree was in
Art, Political Science and Economics from King Saud University in
Saudi Arabia.

Talal Khalid Al Nesf

Board Member
Non-Executive Director

A professional with more than 18 years experience in various
banking, finance and investment fields, Mr. Al-Nesf heads the
Private Banking Department at Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait),
considered as one of the leading Islamic banks in the region.

Mr. Al-Nesf is a member on the executive committee for
enhancement of fund’s base and a chartered wealth manager and
a registered financial specialist from the American Academy of
Financial Management.

Mr. Al-Nesf serves as a member of various companies including
KFH Asset Management SDN BHD (Malaysia), Aviation Lease
and Finance Co. (ALAFCO) (Kuwait), and Al Salam International
Hospital Co. (Kuwait). Mr. Al-Nesf graduated with a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce from Kuwait University.
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Corporate Governance Report
(continued)

7. Dates of Meeting of Board Committees * Audit Committee

e Board of Directors

Attendance

Dec %

2013

Members Feb May Nov
2013 | 2013 | 2013

5 7 10 | 11

Meetings Dates Fareed Soud ) i v i o
Al-Fozan
Members Mohammed
Attend
en% e Ebrahim v v v v 100
Al-Nughaimish
Samir Yagoob Jamal Abdul
Al-Nafisi v v v v v 100 Rahman v v v v 100
Al-Rowaiyeh
Fareed Soud 5
Al-Fozan i . Dr. Mohammed
Abdulafahad | ¥ | Y | Y v 100

Al-Qattan

Abdulrahman
Yousif Fakhro

e Risk Management Committee

v v v
Ahmed Rashed \/ \/ \/ \/ \/ 100
v v v

(\

100

Mohammed
Ebrahim v v - v v 80 5Feb | 10Nov | 11 Dec 5
A-Nughaimish Members 2013 2013 2013 Attendance %
Jamal Abdul
Rahman Al- v v v v v 100 Fareed Soud i v . 33
Rowaiyeh Al-Fozan
Bashar Naser v ) v v v Mohammed
Al-Tuwalijri v Ebrahim v v v 100
Dr. Mohammed | v i v v 80 Al-Nughaimish
Abdulla Fahad Jamal Abdul
Talal Khalid v v v v v Rahman v v v 100
Al-Nesef 100 Al-Rowaiyeh
e Appointments and Remuneration Committee Dr. Mohammed v v v 100
Abdulla Fahad
Members AttenO(Zance 8. Code of Ethics
) o v % % The Board of Directors has adopted a code of ethics for all the
Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi 100 staff. This code defines how to deal with cases involving conflicts
Fareed Soud Al-Fozan v : v 67 of interest. It obliges all the members of the Board of Directors,
Ahmed Rashed Executive Committee, and all employees to follow the highest
A-Qattan v v v 100 professional measures and care while performing their duties.

e  Executive Committee

Attendance
%

Members

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi v - v 67
Ahmed Rashed

Al-Qattan v v v 100
Bashar Naser

Al-Tuwaijri v ) v o
Talal Khalid Al-Nesef v v v 100
Abdulrahman Yousif v v v 100
Fakhro

9 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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(continued)

9. Compliance with Regulatory Authorities
Requirements

Being an Islamic company, the Company observes a Policy of
compliance at all times with the rules and regulations of regulatory
authorities. It is Company Policy to disclose all events of non-
compliance whenever they occur. Compliance has been improved
through enhancement of the present governance framework, and
the adoption of a new and comprehensive guide of corporate
governance, in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code
and HC Module, as prescribed in the Central Bank of Bahrain Rule
Book. The new Corporate Governance Guide includes a code of
ethics for the Board and all committees under it. It also includes
a Conflicts of Interest Policy, procedures for the reporting of
offences, basic guiding principles for corporate governance, Board
members’ appointment agreement, Board members’ performance
evaluation Policy, and an External Advisors policy.

The Company continues to review and develop corporate
governance policies, in accordance with the changing requirements
of regulatory authorities, and in compliance with global corporate
governance best practice.

The Company, through the Board of Directors and its committees,
aims to meet the highest standards of corporate governance, for
the benefit of its shareholders.

10. Religious Supervisory Committee

The Religious Supervisory Committee consists of three members
who monitor compliance by the Company with the general
principles and rules of Islamic Sharia, Fatwas, resolutions and
guidelines issued for such purpose. The Committee’s reviews
include examining and reviewing the evidences related to the
documents and the procedures followed by the Company to ensure
that all its activities and business transactions are in compliance
with the principles and rules of Islamic Sharia. Following are the
names of members of the Religious Supervisory Committee with a
summarized profile of each.

Shaikh Dr. Mohamed Abdelrazzaq Al-
Tabtabai

Shaikh Dr. Al-Tabtabai holds several esteemed positions; the
former dean of the College of Sharia and Islamic Studies at Kuwait
University, and a presiding member of its faculty, the Chairman of
the Committee for the Shariah in Social Welfare in Kuwait, and the
Chairman of the Sharia Compliance & Supervisory Committee for
KFH Malaysia, the head of the Shariah Committee for Aref, and a
member of the international organization for modern day issues of
Zakat, and the previous acting Director of the University of Kuwait,
in addition to residing as chairman or member on a number of
committees for Sharia Supervision and Compliance in Islamic
financial institutions and corporations.

Shaikh Dr. Al-Tabtabai holds a masters degree and a doctorate
in jurisprudence from the Higher Judicial Institute at the Islamic
University of Imam Muhammad bin Saud in Riyadh in 1996.
Shaikh Dr. Al-Tabtabai has shaped the studies of a number of
Islamic shaikhs and scholars, and has done so with a significant
level of media coverage and public teaching lectures.

Shaikh Dr. Al-Tabtabai has participated, and continues to do so,
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in a number of specialized Islamic committees and development
conferences.

Shaikh Dr. Al-Tabtabai’s research and studies includes experience
in:

e Corporate stocks and bonds

e The principles of endowment in Islamic jurisprudence .

¢ Money laundering

e Features of lease and sales contracts for Islamic financial
institutions and their clientele

Shaikh Dr. Anwar Shuaib AlAbd AlSalam

Shaikh Dr. Anwar AIAbd AlSalam has held a number of corporate
and institutional positions, including that of the previous head of
Islamic Jurisprudence at the Faculty of Sharia and Islamic Studies
at the University of Kuwait, Chairman of the Sharia Compliance &
Supervisory Committee for KFH Turkey, and a member in a number
of committees for Sharia Supervision and Compliance in Islamic
financial institutions and corporations.

Shaikh Dr. Anwar AlAbd AlSalam holds a doctorate in jurisprudence
from Al-Azhar University in 1999, and has understudied and taught
in his own right a number of shaikhs and Islamic scholars. Shaikh
Dr. Anwar AlAbd AlSalam maintains a prominent position and
level of activity in the field of teaching, lecturing, authoring, and
investigation into the complexities of Shariah compliance. He has
and continutes to participate in a variety of specialized shariah
committees and field focused conferences.

Shaikh Dr. Anwar AlAbd AlSalam’s research and studies include
experience in:

e Compliance, conformity and inclusion in fundamental linguistics
and enunciation

e Singular and compound structures in fundamental linguistics
and enunciation.

Sheikh Dr. Adnan Ali Mulla

Sheikh Adnan Ali Mulla is the Executive Director of the Shariah
Compliance and Advisory Board for the Kuwait Finance House,
a member of Sharia Compliance & Supervisory Committee at
Baitek, Malaysia, and a member in a number of committees for
Sharia Supervision and Compliance in Islamic financial institutions
and corporations.

Sheikh Dr. Adnan Ali Mulla holds a doctorate from the Faculty
of Science at the University of Cairo under the working title:
"Conversion of obligations, rights and contracts in Islamic financial
transactions and their modern day applications" in 2012, He has
beenan imam and a preacher for the Ministry of Awgaf and Islamic
Affairs since 1989, and is a member in the selection committee for
employees of religious positions (including imams and mu’athans)
in the Ministry of Awgaf. Sheikh Adnan Ali Mulla is an associate
teacher at the College of Sharia, Kuwait University, for the study of
contemporary Islamic transactions.

Sheikh Dr. Adnan Ali Mulla’s research and studies include
experience in the clarification of the jurisprudence of contemporary
Islamic financial transactions, as well as Shariah compliance in
collaboration with with the Department of Human Resources -
Development and Training — at Kuwait Finance House.
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

11. Executive Management’s Committees

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day management
of the Company’s affairs to the Managing Director who is responsible
for the implementation of the strategic plan of the Company. The
Managing Director manages the Company through the following
management committees:

Committee Name Primary Responsibilities

e  Corporate Strategy
o Performance Assessment

Management Committee | ®  Finance
o HR
e  Administrative Issues

Manage the Balance Sheet
Financial Management
Liquidity Management
Banking Relations

Assets & Liabilities
Committee

o Review of Investments

Executive Committee e,
e Acquisitions

¢ Risk Management Policies
. Risk Assessment
e Action-Plan Tracking

Risk Management
Committee

12. Executive Management and Senior
Management

Following are the job titles of the members of the Executive
Management of the Company:

Ahmed Al Qattan
Managing Director - Executive Director

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board of
Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al- Qattan holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accounting from the University of Bahrain. Mr. Al Qattan has
extensive experience in the banking, manufacturing, oil and gas,
trading and contracting sectors across the GCC. Before joining
Inovest, he was Chief Investment Officer at Gulf Finance House
and, prior to this, a Partner at Arthur Andersen in the Kingdom of
Bahrain. Mr. Al- Qattan is Chairman of Bahrain Investment Wharf
and Vice Chairman of Tala Property Development Company.

Mohammed Abdul Khaliq
Executive Director - Business Development

Prior to joining the group in 2004, Mr. Abdul Khaliq held a number of
management positions with Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company in
the Kingdom of Bahrain since 1995, and served as chairman of the
industry committee for property and casualty insurance in Bahrain.
His board memberships have included chairman of Coldwell Banker
Bahrain, vice chairman of Adhari Park Development Company,
board member of Real Estate Finance Company (REEF), and board
member of Bahrain Investment Wharf Company.

Mr. Abdul Khalig is an associate of the Chartered Insurance Institute
(ACIl), UK. He also holds a B.Sc. degree in civil engineering from
the University of Bahrain, and is a member of Bahrain Society of
Engineers.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013

Murad Al Ramadan
Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Murad Al Ramadan is the Chief Investment Officer at Inovest,
an investment professional with more than 14 years industry
experience in financial services, Investment Banking, and real
estate investment and development.

Mr. Al Ramadan joined the group in 2009 as the deputy CEO
and Head of Investment of Inovest’s real estate investment arm
Al Khaleej Development Co. (Tameer), responsible for originating
and structuring investment opportunities as well as managing the
existing investment portfolio of the group. Prior to joining Inovest,
Mr. Al Ramadan worked for Gulf Finance House (GFH) as an
Investment Director where he structured and managed real estate
investment transactions in excess of US$1bn .

Mr. Al Ramadan started his career in Accounting and Auditing,
holding various positions and has worked for KPMG in Bahrain and
Qatar.

Mr. Al Ramadan holds a B.Sc in Accounting from the university
of Bahrain, and an MBA (honors) from New York Institute of
technology (NYIT)-USA.

Mohamed Abdulla Isa
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Mohamed Isa joined Inovest in September 2004, and has, since
then, played an instrumental role in achieving several corporate
milestones, including handling the company’s Initial Public Offering,
its cross-listing on Kuwait Stock Exchange, its rights issue, the re-
launch of its new corporate identity and its corporate restructuring
program.

Before joining Inovest, Mohamed worked for Unilever in its offices
in the United Arab Emirates and the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. His
last post with the company was that of Regional Finance Manager
for North Africa, Middle East and Turkey.

Mr. Isa is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from Colorado
State Board of Accountancy and holds a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the University of Bahrain as well as a Master of
Business Administration (MBA) from the University of Hull in the
UK. It is also worth noting that Mr. Isa is a Fellow of both the
Chartered Management Institute and the Institute of Leadership
and Management in the United Kingdom.

Hamad Zainalabedeen
Executive Director - Internal Audit

Hamad Zainalabedeen joined Inovest BSC in 2009 as the Head of
Internal Audit Department. Hamad has worked in a number of local
and world renowned financial institutions and professional audit
firms over the last 14 years with extensive auditing experience in
Islamic Investment Banks, Investment Businesses, Manufacturing
Enterprises, Governmental Organizations and other sectors.

Prior to joining Inovest, Hamad held leading positions in Internal
Audit at Investment Dar Bank and Gulf Finance House. Hamad
also worked with Ernst & Young and Arthur Andersen as an
external auditor.

Hamad holds an Executive MBA and Bachelors of Science in
Accounting from the University of Bahrain.
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Corporate Governance Report

(continued)

13. Executive Management Shareholding

The following schedule shows the shareholding of the Executive
Management and the Senior Management as of 31st December
2013:

Number of Shares as Number of Shares as of

LTS of 31 December 2012 | 31 December 2013
Ahmed Rashed Al 200511 200,511
Qattan
Mohgmmed Abdul 962,081 962,081
Khalig

14. Executive Management Remuneration

The Company implements a short and long term compensation
scheme for the members of the Executive Committee that has been
developed based on the present market situation. The Company
also implements an incentive scheme, through which the qualified
employees are granted shares and cash incentives once they reach
the pre-set targets. For more information, please refer to Note 23
of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31st
December 2013. The Board members may receive compensations
for attending meetings and their annual compensation shall be
subject to the consent of the shareholders at the year end.

15. Related Party Transactions

The details of related party transactions are shown under Note
23 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending
31st December 2013. For further information, the shareholders are
requested to refer the aforesaid Note.

16. Compliance Control and Money

Laundering Combating

Compliance with the principles and provisions of Islamic Sharia,
and regulatory and statutory requirements are a continuous
process. The Company realizes its responsibility of compliance with
all the related provisions by implementing global best practice. The
Company has established a unit for regulatory control, to ensure
adherence to the guidelines & rules of the Central Bank of Bahrain.
This unit acts both to ensure observance of the principles of Islamic
Sharia and regulatory rules, and the implementation of Compliance
best practice.

The procedures for combating money laundering form a major part
of compliance assignments. The Company also maintains specific
policies and procedures, approved by the Board of Directors, for
money laundering prevention. These include a Client Due Diligence
process, reporting of suspicious transactions, periodical staff
awareness and training programs, & record -keeping, as well as
the key policy of appointment of an officer dedicated to money
laundering prevention.

Money laundering prevention Policy & Procedures are reviewed
annually by external auditors, who report their findings to the Central
Bank of Bahrain. The Company is committed to combating money
laundering, and to implementing all AML rules, principles and
guidelines issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain. Pursuant to HC
Module HC-A.1.8 of the CBB Rule Book (Volume 4 - HC Module)
that refers to the principle of “Comply or Explain”, which provides

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013

that it is necessary for the Company to interpret non-compliance
events with the recommendations prescribed in the Rule Book, the
Company is pleased to report that it is in the process of preparing a
work plan to implement all the necessary procedures to enable it to
comply with the regulations issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain.
As a first step, a compliance report has been submitted by the
Executive Management to the Audit Committee to implement the
same in this respect.

17. External Auditor

The Company shall make available information on the audit fees that
are charged by the external auditor and the other services which
are provided by the external auditor to shareholders upon request,
provided that disclosure of such information shall not negatively
impact the interest of the Company or its market competitiveness.
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Sharia Supervisory Board
Report

Sharia Supervisory Board Report on the Activities of Inovest BSC
For the Financial Year Ended on 31 December 2013

In the name of Allah,

the Beneficent, the Merciful, Prayers and Peace Upon the Last Apostle and Messenger, Our Prophet Mohammed, His
Relatives and Companions.

The Shari’a Supervisory Board “The Board” of INOVEST B.S.C. has reviewed the Company activities and compared
them with the issued Fatwas and Rulings during the Financial Year Ended on 31 December 2013 and found them
compatible with them.

The Board believes that he has expressed its opinion in respect of the activities carried out by INOVEST and it is the
responsibility of the management to ensure the implementation of such decisions.

A representative of the company’s management explained and clarified the contents of the Financial Year Ended on
31 December 2013. The report of the Board has been prepared based on the information provided by the company.

The Board is satisfied that the activities and services carried by INOVEST are in compliance with the Glorious Islamic
Sharia’a.

Praise be to Allah, Lord of the Worlds. Prayers be upon Prophet Mohammed Peace Be Upon Him, Relatives and
Companions.

On behalf of the Committee, g
Shaikh Dr. Mohammed A. Razaiq Al Tabtabaee
Chairman -

Shaikh Adnan Ali Mulla !
Vice Chairman - - - .

Shaikh Anwar Shuaib Abdul Salam
Member _ — = — —

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS> REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF INOVEST B.S.C.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Inovest B.S.C. (the «Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the «Group”), as of 31 December 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows,
changes in owners> equity and sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements
and the Grouprs undertaking to operate in accordance with Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles are the responsibility of the
Company>s Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions issued by the Accounting and
Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions («<AAQIFI»). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall consolidated financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as of 31 December 2013, the results of its operations, its cash flows, changes in owners> equity and sources and uses of
charity fund for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards issued by AAOIFI.

Report on other regulatory requirements

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Central Bank of Bahrain («CBB») Rule Book (Volume 4), we report
that:

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated financial statements are in agreement
therewith; and

b) the financial information contained in the Report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements.

Except for what has been reported in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, we are not aware of any violations of the
Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law, the CBB Rule Book (Volume 4
and applicable provisions of Volume 6) and CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of the
Bahrain Bourse or the terms of the Company>s memorandum and articles of association during the year ended 31 December 2013
that might have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its financial position. Satisfactory explanations
and information have been provided to us by management in response to all our requests. The Group has also complied with the
Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Group.

Other matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified audit opinion dated 6 February 2013 on those consolidated financial statements.

12 February 2014
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Note 2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1777 6,109
Mudaraba and murabaha financing - 3,760
Trade and other receivables 6 60,430 67,946
Investments 7 23,430 26,611
Investment in a joint venture and associates 8 98,245 90,811
Investment in real estate 9 81,114 89,598
Properties under development 5,638 -
Property, plant and equipment 10 7,075 7,706
TOTAL ASSETS 293,109 292,541
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 86,3867 82,052
liara and murabaha financing 12 39,957 39,268
Total liabilities 126,824 121,320
Owners' Equity
Share capital 13 114,604 114,604
Less: Treasury shares 13 (651) (651)

113,953 113,953

Share premium 14 30,760 30,760
Statutory reserve 14 21,473 21,473
Share option reserve 14 35 28
Retained earnings 64 5,007
Total owners' equity 166,285 171,221
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 293,109 292,541

These consolidated financial statements, set out on pages 15 to 49, were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
8 February 2013 and signed on their behalf by:

» Q -2

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan
Chairman Managing Director
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Inovest B.S.C.
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Note 2013 2012

OPERATING INCOME
Income from investment in real estate 15 5,657 1,238
Income from investments 16 925 e
Income from advisory services 17 5,325 2,329
Net income from construction contracts 18 764 3,167
Net share of (loss) profit from investment in a joint

venture and associates 8 (901) 883
Other income 237 183
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 12,007 8,577
OPERATING EXPENSES
Staff costs 19 4,585 5,263
General and administrative expenses 20 3,093 3,889
liara and Murabaha financing costs 3,471 4,011
Property related expenses 134 181
Depreciation 10 738 922
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,021 14,266
NET OPERATING LOSS (14) (5,689)
Provision - net 21 (4,929) (3,335)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (4,943 (9,024)
(BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (US cents 22 (1.74) (3.17)
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Inovest B.S.C.

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

Share

Share  Treasury Share Statutory . Retained
! . option . Total

capital shares premium reserve earnings

reserve

Balance at 1 January 2013 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 28 5,007 171,221
Net loss for the year - - - - - (4,943) (4,943)
Share option charge (net) - - - - 7 - 7
Balance at 31 December 2013 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 35 64 166,285
Balance at 1 January 2012 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 474 14,031 180,681
Net loss for the year - - - - - (9,024) (9,024)
Share option charge (net) - - - - (446) - (446)
Balance at 31 December 2012 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 28 5,007 171,221

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.

Consolidated statement of sources and uses of charity fund
for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

2013 2012
Sources of charity fund
Undistributed charity funds at the beginning of the year 642 786
Contribution by the Company - -
Total sources of charity funds during the year 642 786
Uses of charity funds
Contributions for charitable purposes 18 144
Total uses of funds during the year 13 144
Undistributed charity funds at 31 December 629 642

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

alay] 2013 2012
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the year (4.943) (9.024)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 10 977 1.174
Charge (write back) on share option 7 (446)
Net provision (write back) charge for impaired receivables 21 (102) 1.061
Provision for case compensation 8 3.288 -
Net share of (loss) profit from investment in a joint venture and associates 8 901 (883)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - (49)
Realised (loss) gain on sale of investment in real estate 1.043 (1.506)
Unrealised fair value loss on investment in real estate 9 171 1.685
Net impairment loss on investments 7 1.743 2.274
3.085 (5.714)
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables 4.287 (1.630)
Trade and other payables 4.081 1.519
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 11.453 (5.825)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net movement in Mudaraba and Murabaha financing 3.760 5.282
Purchase of investments 7 (2.500) (40)
Purchase of investment in real estate (268) -
Proceeds from sale of investment in real estate - net 6.522 6.000
Additions to properties under development (3.845) -
Purchase of investment in a joint venture and associates 8 (16.627) -
Proceeds from capital redemption from investment in a joint venture and associates 8 11.832 752
Dividends received from a joint venture and associates 8 398 319
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (870) (785)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 24 52
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (1.074) 11.580
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Net movement in Murabaha financing 12 689 (10.785)
Net cash from (used in) financing activity 689 (10.785)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11.068 (5.030)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.109 11.139
5 17177 6.109
Non cash transactions comprise:
Transfer of investment in real estate to property, plant and equipment - (1.939)
Transfer of investment in real estate to properties under development 9 1.793 -
Transfer of investments to investments in a joint venture and associates 8 3.938 -
Settlement of trade receivables through acquisition of investment in real estate 15 3.331 -
Settlement of related party payables by transfer of investment in real estate 2.554 -
11.616 (1.939)

Non-cash transactions:
The transaction towards the transfer of investment properties (Note 12) to property, plant and equipment (Note 13) and

purchase of investment properties (Note 12) in swap of sale of investment properties during the year ended 31 December
2012 have been excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows being non-cash transactions.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION AND ACTIVITIES
a) Incorporation

Inovest B.S.C. (the “Company”) is a public shareholding company incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain on 18 June 2002
and operates under Commercial Registration (CR) number 48848. The Company commenced operations on 1 October
2002.Under the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association, the duration of the Company is 50 years, renewable
for further similar periods unlessterminated earlier by law or as stated in the Memorandum and Articles of Association. The
address of

the Company’s registered office is 20th floor, East Tower, Bahrain Financial Harbour, Manama,

Kingdom of Bahrain. The Company is listed on the Bahrain Bourse and cross-listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.

The Company is listed on the Bahrain Bourse and cross-listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.
The Company operates under an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles)

issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain (“CBB”), to operate under the Islamic Shari’a principles, and is
supervised and regulated by the CBB.

b) Activities
The principal activities of the Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include:

- Engaging directly in all types of investments, including direct investment and securities, and various types of
investment funds.

- Establishing and managing various investment funds.

- Dealing in financial instruments in the local, regional and international markets;
- Providing financial services and investment consultations to others;

- Providing financial services and investment consultations to others;

- Establishing joint ventures with real estate, industrial and services companies inside or outside the Kingdom
of Bahrain and committing to operate under the Islamic Shari’a principles;.

- Engaging in the management of commercial and industrial centers and residential buildings, property leasing,
development and their maintenance; and.

- Having interest in or participating in any way with companies and other entities engaged in similar activities
that may work and co-operate to achieve the Group’s objectives inside and outside the Kingdom of Bahrain,
and also merge its activities with the above mentioned entities and/or buy or join with them.

Although the Company has an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) issued by the CBB
in September 2008, it continues to hold real estate assets and related revenues and costs in its consolidated financial
statements. These assets existed prior to obtaining the license from the CBB. The Company has transferred its entire real
estate assets and the related revenues and costs to its fully owned subsidiary, Al Khaleej Development Co. B.S.C.(c), which
primarily carries out real estate and construction related activities. Since Al Khaleej Development Co. B.S.C.(c) is fully owned
by the Company, the real estate assets and revenues and costs continue to appear in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013. Notes 9, 12, 15 and 18 in these consolidated financial statements
reflect the Group’s transactions arising from holding of real estate assets and their corresponding liabilities and revenues
and costs arising therefrom.

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 December 2013 was 527 (31 December 2012:552).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors dated 12 February 2014.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting
and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAQIFI”), the Shari’a Rules and Principles as determined by the Shari’a
Supervisory Board of the Group, the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the CBB, Financial Institutions Law, the CBB Rule Book
(Volume 4 and applicable provisions of Volume 6), CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of
the Bahrain Bourse and the terms of the Company’s memorandum and articles of association. In accordance with the requirements
of AAQIFI, for matters for which no AAOIFI standard exists, the Group uses the relevant International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

2.2 Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment in a joint venture and
associates which are equity accounted, equity-type instruments at fair value through equity and investment in real estate that have
been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“US Dollars”) being the
reporting currency of the Group. All values are rounded to the nearest US Dollar thousands unless otherwise indicated.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at and for the
year ended 31 December each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

All'intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date control is transferred to the Company and continue to be consolidated until the date
that control ceases. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
S0 as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary’s net assets is reported as a separate item in the Group’s owners’ equity. In the consolidated
statement of income, non-controlling interest is included in net profit, and shown separately from that of the shareholders.

Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original businesscombination and the non-
controlling interests’ share of changes in owners’ equity since the date of combination. Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interest in excess of the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to
the extent that the noncontrolling interest has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Transactions with non-controlling interests are handled in the same way as transactions with external parties. Sale of participations to
non-controlling interests result in a gain or loss that is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Changes in the ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transaction.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The following are the principal subsidiaries of the Company, which are consolidated in these
consolidated financial statements:

Ownership Country of
Name of the subsidiary 2013 and incorporation Year of Activity
2012

Held directly by the Company

Purchase, sale,

Al Khaleej Development Co. B.S.C. 99.98% ool 2009 management and

© development of properties
Holds the Group’s
Tameer for Private Management 5 . Shares on bghalf o
WLL 99.00% Ul daalgo 2004 employees in respect
T of the employees’ share
option plan

The following are the subsidiaries held indirectly through Al Knhaleej Development Co. B.S.C. (c):

Held indirectly by the Company
Development, maintenance,
Kinadom of leasing and management of
Bahrain Investment Wharf B.S.C. (c) 99.00% 9 ‘ 2006 commercial and industrial
Bahrain . . -
centers, residential buildings
and property
Circo Total Facility Management Co. W.L.L. 99.00% ngdom o 2005 Management and malmtemamce
Bahrain of properties
Tamcon Contracting Co. B.S.C. () 99.00% K‘%%i?;:ff 2007 Contracting activities

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated as though the Company owns 100% of these
subsidiaries, as the other shareholders hold their shares on behalf of and for the beneficial interest of the Company.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of the new standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January
2013.

New accounting standard

FAS 26 Investment in real estate
During 2012, AAOIFI issued new Financial Accounting Standard (FAS 26) “Investment in real estate”, which is effective as of 1
January 2013.

FAS 26 covers the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of investment in real estate which is acquired for the
purpose of earning periodical income or held for capital appreciation or both. The adoption had no effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s investments in real estate.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the adoption of the new standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January 2013.

a. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise cash in hand, bank balances and short
term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

b. Mudaraba and murabaha financing

Mudaraba financing is partnership in which the Group contributes capital. Murabaha consists of sale transaction agreements (Murabaha)
and commodity agreements stated at net of deferred profit and provision for impairment. These are amounts placed with financial
institutions with maturity between 91 and 360 days. The contracts are stated at fair value of consideration given less impairment. The
Group considers the promise made in Murabaha to the purchase orderer as obligatory.

c. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are carried at their anticipated values. An estimate is made for impaired trade receivables based on a review of all
outstanding amounts at the year end.

d. Investments

Investments comprise equity-type instruments at fair value through equity, investment in real estate, properties under development and
investment in a joint venture and associates.

Equity-type instruments at fair value through equity

This includes all equiity-type instruments that are not fair valued through consolidated statement of income. Subsequent to acquisition,
investments designated at fair value through equity are re-measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in owners’
equity until the investment is derecognised or determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded
in owners' equity is recognised in consolidated statement of income.

Investment in real estate

Properties held for rental, or for capital appreciation purposes, or both, are classified as investment in real estate. Investments in real
estate are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and acquisition charges associated with the property.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment in real estate are re-measured at fair value and changes in fair value (only gains) are
recognised through the consolidated statement of owners’ equity.

Losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment in real estate are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. When
the property is disposed of, the gains or losses arising on disposal is transferred to the consolidated statement of income.

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business or in the process of construction
and development for its future sale. Properties under development include expenditure incurred in the normal course of developing and
constructing the property and are stated at lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell.

Properties under development are derecognised when they have either been disposed off, or when the property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition of a property under
development are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of derecognition.

Investment in associates and a joint venture
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
d. Investments (continued)

Investment in associates and a joint venture (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Under the equity method, investment in associates and a joint venture are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates and joint venture. The consolidated
statement of income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associates and joint venture. Where there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associates and joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes
and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associates and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in
the associates and joint venture.

The reporting dates of associates and joint venture and the Group are identical and the associates’ and joint venture’s accounting
policies conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on the
Group’s investment in associates and joint venture. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that investment in associates or joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as being the difference between the recoverable amount of associates and joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the
impairment in the consolidated statement of income.

e. Fair values

Fair value is the value representing the estimate of the amount of cash or cash equivalent that would be received for an asset sold
or the amount of cash or cash equivalent paid for a liability extinguished or transferred in an orderly transaction between a willing
buyer and a willing seller at the measurement date.

Fair value is determined for each financial asset individually in accordance with the valuation policies set out below:

(1) For investments that are traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to the quoted market bid
prices prevailing on the consolidated statement of financial position date.

(2) For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to recent significant buy or sell transactions with third parties
that are either completed or are in progress. \Where no recent significant transactions have been completed or are in progress, fair
value is determined by reference to the current market value of similar investments. For others, the fair value is based on the net
present value of estimated future cash flows, or other relevant valuation methods.

(3) For investments that have fixed or determinable cash flows, fair value is based on the net present value of estimated future cash
flows determined by the Group using current profit rates for investments with similar terms and risk characteristics.

(4) Investments which cannot be remeasured to fair value using any of the above techniques are carried at cost, less provision for
impairment.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
f. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation
on premises and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building on leasehold land 25 years

Machinery, equipment, furmniture and fixtures 3-b years

Computer hardware and software 3 years

Motor vehicles 3years

g. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

h. ljara and murabaha financing

liara and murabaha financing are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction cost incurred. Subsequently, these are
carried at amortised cost.

i. Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are deducted from the equity of the parent and accounted for at weighted
average cost. Consideration paid or received on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments is
recognised directly in the equity of the parent. No gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of income on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of own equity instruments.
j- Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without

material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
e  gither () the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

(ii) Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
k. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and the costs to
settle the obligation are both probable and reliably measurable. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability.
I. Amortised cost measurement
The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,

minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective profit rate method of any difference between
the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment for financial assets.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

n. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

() Income from properties
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment in real estate is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included under revenue in the consolidated statement of income due to its operating nature.

(i) Income from advisory services
Income from advisory services and project management fees are recognised based on the stage of completion of the service at the
consolidated statement of financial position date by reference to the contractual terms agreed between the parties.

(iii) Income from investments
Income from investments is recognised when earned.

(iv) Income from construction contracts
Contract income is recognised under the percentage of completion method.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to the stage
of physical completion of the contract. Contract income and costs are recognised as income and expenses in the consolidated
statement of income in the accounting year in which the work is performed. The contract income is matched with the contract costs
incurred in reaching the stage of completion, resulting in the reporting of income, expenses and profit which can be attributed to the
proportion of work completed. Profits expected to be realised on construction contracts are based on estimates of total income and
cost at completion.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the contract income is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred up to the year end where it is probable those costs will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised when incurred.
The excess of progress billings over contract costs is classified under trade and other payables as due to customers for construction
contracts.

Losses on contracts are assessed on an individual contract basis and if estimates of cost to complete the construction contracts
indicate losses, provision is made for the full losses anticipated in the period in which they are first identified.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit or loss recognised on each contract is compared against the progress billings
up to the year end. Where the sum of the costs incurred and recognised profit or loss exceeds the progress bilings, the balance is
shown under trade and other receivables as due from customers for construction contracts. Where the progress billings exceed the
sum of costs incurred and recognised profit or loss, the balance is shown under trade and other payables as due to customers for
construction contracts.

o. Shari’a supervisory board

The Group’s business activities are subject to the supervision of a Shari’a supervisory board consisting of three members appointed
by the general assembly.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
p. Earnings prohibited by Shari’a

The Group is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non-Islamic sources. Accordingly, all non-Islamic income is
credited to a charity account where the Group uses these funds for various social welfare activities.

q. Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars at functional currency rates of exchange
prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Any gains or losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

r. Employees’ end of service benefits

Bahraini employees are covered by the Social Insurance Organisation scheme which comprises a defined contribution scheme to
which the Group contributes a monthly sum based on a fixed percentage of the salary. The contribution is recognised as an expense
in the consolidated statement of income.

The Group provides end of service benefits to its non-Bahraini employees. Entitlement to these benefits is usually based upon the
employees’ length of service and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits which comprise
a defined benefit scheme are accrued over the period of employment based on the notional amount payable if all employees had left
at the statement of financial position date.

s. Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific financial
asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is
determined and any impairment loss, based on the assessment by the Group of the estimated cash equivalent value, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income. Specific provisions are created to reduce all impaired financial contracts to their realisable
cash equivalent value. Financial assets are written off only in circumstances where effectively all possible means of recovery have been
exhausted.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment value was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

In the case of equity-type instruments at fair value through equity, impairment is reflected directly as write down of the financial asset.
Impairment losses on equity-type instruments at fair value through equity are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
income, while any subsequent increase in their fair value are recognised directly in owners’ equity.

t. Events after the statement of financial position date

The consolidated financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the statement of financial position date and
the date the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, provided they give evidence of conditions that existed as of the
statement of financial position date. Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the statement of financial position date are
disclosed, but do not result in an adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

u. Zakah

Individual shareholders are responsible for payment of Zakah.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures as well as the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of investments

Management decides on acquisition of an investment, whether it should be classified as equity-type instrument at fair value through the
consolidated statement of income, equity-type instruments at fair value through equity or debt-type instrument at amortised cost.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it has the resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to
be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair valuation of investments

The determination of fair values of unquoted investments requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect
the reported amount of assets at the date of consolidated financial statements.

Nonetheless, the actual amount that is realised in a future transaction may differ from the current estimate of fair value and may still be
outside management estimates, given the inherent uncertainty surrounding valuation of unquoted investments.

Special purpose entities

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entities (“SPE”) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients to hold investments.
The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to these SPEs, which involve the Group
making decisions on behalf of such entities. The Group administers and manages these entities on behalf of its clients, who are by
and large third parties and are the economic beneficiaries of the underlying investments. The Group does not consolidate SPEs that it
does not have the power to control. In determining whether the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgments are made about
the objectives of the SPE’s activities, its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group intention and ability to make
operational decisions for the SPE and whether the Group derives benefits from such decisions.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific
financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that
asset is determined and any impairment loss, based on the assessment by the Group of the value to it of anticipated future cash
flows, is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Specific provisions are created to reduce all impaired financial contracts

to their realisable cash equivalent value.

Liquidity

The Group manages its liquidity through consideration of the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities which is set out in the liquidity risk
disclosures in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. This requires judgement when determining the maturity of assets and

liabilities with no specific maturities.

5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Short-term Mudaraba and Murabaha deposits 8.592 618
Current account balances with banks 8.570 5.475
Cash in hand 15 16

17177 6.109

The current account balances with banks are non-profit bearing.

6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Trade receivables 26.779 32.418
Amounts due from related parties (note 23) 36.134 35.033
Prepayments and other receivables 1.889 4,761
Rent receivable 396 399
Advance to contractors and suppliers 532 /37

65.730 73.348
Less: provision for impaired receivables (5.300) (6.402)

60.430 67.946

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, bear no profit and have no fixed repayment terms.

The trade receivables stated at a carrying amount of US$ 15.13 million (2012: US$ 15.13 million) are secured as collateral against the

liara and Murabaha financing facilities obtained (note 12).

The movement in the Group’s provision for impaired receivables is as follows: o1 December

31 December

2013 2012
At 1 January 5.402 4.400
Charge during the year 1.888 1.061
Write back during the year (1.990) 89)
At 31 December 5.300 5.402

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

7 INVESTMENTS

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
Equity-type instruments at fair value through equity - Unquoted
Real estate related 24.039 27977
Others 6.892 4.392
30.931 32.369
Less: Provision for impairment (7.501) (5.758)
At 31 December 23.430 26.611

Equity-type investments at fair value through equity include investments in unlisted companies whose shares are not traded on active
markets. The investments are primarily in closely-held companies located in the Gulf Co-operation Council (‘GCC”). The investments
are held at cost less provision for impairment due to the unpredictable nature of their future cash flows and the lack of other suitable

methods for accruing at a reliable fair value.

The investments stated at a carrying amount of US$ 5.31 million (2012: US$ 5.31 million) are secured as collateral against the ljara and

Murabaha facilities obtained (note 12).

The movement in provision for impairment on investments is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
At 1 January 5,758 3.484
Charge during the year 1.998 2.274
Recovery during the year (255)
At 31 December 7.501 5.758

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES

31 December

31 December

2013 2012

At 1 January 90.811 90.999
Purchases during the year (note 8.1) 16.627

Disposals during the year (11.832) (752)
Transfer from investments 3.938

Dividends received during the year (398) (319)
Net share of (loss) profit (901) AP
At 31 December 98.245 90.811

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note 8.1

During the year 2012, an investor who invested in a project through a company managed by the Group, filed a lawsuit against the
Group claiming an amount of US$ 18.98 up to US$ 23.70 million, which includes the invested amount, compensation and lawyer fees.
The court issued an order during the year for the Group to pay an amount of US$ 19.23 million covering the invested amount along
with the compensation and other fees in instalments within one year. The Group recapitalised its investment amounting to US$ 15.90
million and recorded the excess as provision for compensation of US$ 3.33 million in its consolidated financial statements.

The Group has paid three instalments to the investor during the year amounting to US$ 8.70 million. The remaining balance to be
paid of US$ 10.53 million is reported under trade and other payables. Currently, the Group has 49.66% stake in the concerned
company, the Group continues to treat this investment as an associate and accounted using the equity method.

The Group has an investment in the following joint venture:

Name Principal activities Ownership
2013 2012
Property management,
Tala P rty Devel t W.L.L.
ala Property Developmen . development and 60.00% 60.00%
maintenance and purchase
and sale of properties
Name Country of incorporation Carrying value
2013 2012
Tala Property Development W.L.L. Kingdom of Bahrain 10.579 10.557

Summarised financial information of joint venture

Summarised financial information of the joint venture based on the management accounts, are presented below:

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Total assets 24.347 24.645
Total liabilities 6.715 7.050
Total revenues 1.841 6.085
Total net profit 699 5.037

The joint venture had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

31 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

The principal associates of the Group are:

Ownership
Name of associate Principal activities
2013 2012
Purchase, sale,
| t
Aseel Real Estate Company* development and 23.40% 3.40%
management of private
properties
Development and sale of
Durrat Marina Investment Company Ltd. commercial and residential 25.78% 25.78%
properties
Development and
BIW Labour Accommodation W.L.L. maintenance of labour 27.08% 27.08%
camps
Devel t le of
Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd. evelopment and sals o 29.28% 29.08%
residential properties
: Management and
Takhzeen Warehousing and Storage Company maintenance of 34.33% 34.33%
B.S.C. (0
warehouses
Development of real estate
Al Dhahran Views Project™ in Dhahran, Kingdom of 23.17% -
Saudi Arabia
Development of real estate
t | 1
gﬁ”)”a Resort Development Company Ltd (note in Al Knobar, Kingdom of 49.66% 30.39%
' Saudi Arabia
Name of associate Country of incorporation Carrying Value
2013 2012
Aseel Real Estate Company* Cayman Islands 822 -
Durrat Marina Investment Company Ltd. Cayman Islands 32.913 33.533
BIW Labour Accommodation W.L.L. Kingdom of Bahrain 12.012 11,928
Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd. Cayman Islands 5.634 6.304
Takhzeen Warehousing and Storage Company Kingdom of Bahrain 4019 4634
B.S.C. (¢
Al Dhahran Views Project™ Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 3.599 -
Dannat Resort Development Company Ltd. Cayman Islands 28.474 23.855
87.666 80.254

* As a result of additional investment, the investment was transferred from equity type investments at fair value through equity during

the year.

** The investment was swapped with equity type investment at fair value through equity. However, the Company received an equity

stake of 23.17% in the new investment. Having significant influence, the investment has been classified as an associate.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of associates, based on the management accounts, are presented below:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Summarised financial information of associates
Total assets 323.861 322.468
Total liabilities 44.906 34.956
Total revenues 1.087 5)
Total net loss (2.763) (8.173)

The associates had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Group’s investment in a joint venture and associates is secured as a collateral against the ljara
and Murabaha facilities obtained (31 December 2012: US$ 10.56 million) (note 12).

9 INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

At 1 January 89.598 97.716
Purchases during the year 3.599 947
Disposals during the year (10.119) (5.447)
Transferred to properties under development (1.793) -
Transferred to property, plant and equipment - (1.939)
Unrealised fair value loss on investment in real estate (171) (1.685)
At 31 December 81.114 89.508

Investment in real estate is stated at fair value which has been determined based on valuations performed by accredited independent
property valuers. The valuations undertaken were based on open market values, which represent the prices at which the properties
could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing buyers and knowledgeable willing sellers in an arm’s length transaction.

Investment in real estate stated at a carrying amount of US$ 40.09 million (2012: US$ 57.29 million) is secured as collateral against the
liara and Murabaha facilities obtained (note 12).

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery,

. . Computer Capital
cmsshonend e ardware B workcin: o
USS 000 andtres MU Usgiono RS U0
US$ '000
Cost
At 1 January 2013 4.284 4.586 1.267 1.138 2.071 13.346
Additions - 41 30 191 108 370
Disposals - - 8) (48) - (56)
At 31 December 2013 4.284 4.627 1.289 1.281 2.179 13.660
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013 384 3.306 1.145 805 - 5.640
Charge 170 591 61 155 - 977
Disposals - - 5) 27) - (32)
At 31 December 2013 554 3.897 1.201 933 - 6.585
Net book amount;
At 31 December 2013 3.730 730 88 348 2.179 7.075
At 31 December 2012 3.900 1.280 122 333 2,071 7.706

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment charged to the consolidated statement of income is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
Depreciation charged to contract costs (note 18) 239 252
Depreciation charged to expenses 738 922
977 1174

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
Lease rent payables (note 11.1) 50.105 50.105
Accruals and other payables 18.415 18.695
Case compensation (note 8.1) 10.870 -
Trade payables (note 11.2) 4.597 6.455
Amounts due to related parties (note 11.3) 1.612 5.748
Retentions payable 1.268 1.049
86.867 82.052

Note 11.1

Lease rent payable relates to a subsidiary of the Company and is of a long-term nature.

Note 11.2

Trade payables are generally payable within 60 to 90 days of the suppliers’ invoice date.

Note 11.3

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, bear no profit, have no fixed repayment terms and are authorised by the Group’s

management.

34 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

12 IJARA AND MURABAHA FINANCING

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
liara payable 2.947 2.947
Murabaha payable 37.010 36.321
Total ljara and Murabaha financing 39.957 39.268

The Group has obtained ljara and Murabaha financing to fund the acquisition of investments, purchase of properties and to meet
working capital requirements. These liabilities bear market rates of profit and are repayable in accordance with the repayment terms
agreed with respective banks.

The above financial facilities are secured against the following assets:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Investment in real estate (note 9) 40.090 57.287
Trade receivables (note 6) 15.125 15,125
Investments (note 7) 5.205 5.305
Investment in a joint venture and associates (note 8) - 10.557
60.520 88.274
13 SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Authorised
(December 2012: 375,000,000 31) 375,000,000
ordinary shares of US$0.40 each 150008 150000
Issued and fully paid-up
Opening balance
(December 2012: 286,511,225 31) 286,511,225
ordinary shares of US$0.40 each 11abos 114604
Treasury shares
(Less: 1,627,825 (31 December 2012: 1,627,825 (651) (651)
treasury shares of US$0.40 each
Closing balance
(December 2012: 284,883,400 31) 284,883,400 113.953 113.953

ordinary shares of US$ 0.40 each

Treasury shares represent shares issued to Tameer for Private Management W.L.L., a subsidiary of the Company, for the employees’
share option plan.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

13 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Additional information on shareholding pattern
Names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares they hold, without considering the treasury shares, are
disclosed below (where their shareholding amounts to more than 5% or more of outstanding shares):

At 31 December 2013

Number of

il H 0
Name Incorporation shares holding %
Al-Muthana Investment Company Kuwait 47.448.384 16.56%
Dubai Islamic Bank United Arab 19.748.883 6.89%
Emirates
Al-Watani Investment Company Kuwait 16.060.251 5.61%
Others Various 203.253.707 70.94%
286.511.225 100%
At 31 December 2012
Name Incorporation Number of holding %
shares
Al-Muthana Investment Company Kuwait 43.108.255 15.05%
Dubai Islamic Bank Vnited Arab 10.748.883 6.89%
Emirates
Others Various 223.654.087 78.06%
286.511.225 100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of these shares have equal voting rights. Further, all the shares
issued are fully paid.
Distribution schedule of shares, setting out the number and percentage of holders is disclosed below:

At 31 December 2013

of total %
Categories: perel Nentl outstanding
’ shares shareholders
shares
Less than 1% 127.961.403 948 44.66%
1% up to less than 57 75.292.304 14 26.28%
5% up to less than 10% 35.809.134 2 12.50%
10% up to less than 50% 47.488.384 1 16.56%
286.551.225 965 100%
At 31 December 2012
0,
Categories: Aenti Nentl ou(t);tt:rzzlin/;
' shares shareholders
shares
Less than 1% 128.723.743 942 44.93%
1% up to less than 57 94.930.344 17 33.13%
5% up to less than 10% 19.748.883 1 6.89%
10% up to less than 50% 43.108.255 1 15.05%
286.511.225 961 100%

At 31 December 2013, the Board of Directors collectively hold 2.46% of the shares of the total issued and fully paid-up share capital
of the Company (31 December 2012: 2.52%).
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

13 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Additional information on shareholding pattern (continued)

Details of shares owned by the directors of the Group are as follows:

Number of shares

31 December 31 December

2018 2012

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Fahad Al-Madii 5.045.104 5.045.104
Fareed Soud Al-Fozan 962.650 962.650
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi 474723 474,723
Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh 230.238 230.238
Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan 200.511 200.511
Talal Khalid Al-Nesef 94.160 94.160
Mohammed Ebrahim Al-Nughaimish 78.050 78.050
Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri 78.050 78.050
Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhro 49.530 49.530
7.213.016 7.213.016

14 RESERVES

a. Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s articles of association, 10% of the net profit for the
year is required to be transferred to a statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the
reserve equals 50% of paid up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution, except in circumstances as stipulated in the
Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and following the approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain. As the Group has reported net losses
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, no transfer was made to the statutory reserve.

b. Share option reserve

This represents the difference between the grant price and fair value of the Company’s share options issued to the Group’s employees
in accordance with the Employee Share Option Plan (‘ESOP”) Scheme.

c. Treasury shares

This represents weighted average cost of own shares held in treasury and under the employee incentive scheme.

d. Share premium

Amounts collected in excess of the par value of the issued share capital during any new issue of shares, net of issue costs, are treated

as share premium. This amount is not available for distribution, but can be utilised as stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies
Law.
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

15 INCOME FROM INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
Reversal of excess accruals (note 15.1) 6.012 -
Property related facilities income 455 901
Realised gains on sale of investment in real estate 431 1.506
Rental income 404 516
Unrealised fair value losses on investment in real estate (171) (1.685)
Loss recognised on settlement of receivables (note 15.2) (1.474) -

5.657 1.238

Note 15.1

During the year, the Group reversed excess accruals amounting to US$ 6 million relating to completed and sold projects. A detailed
exercise was undertaken by the Group to assess the likelihood of payments against these accruals. It was concluded that as the
projects are completed and sold and no further work is required on these projects, the accruals are no longer required.

Note 15.2

During the year, an investor who purchased 5 plots of land in prior years, agreed 1o settle his outstanding balance by returning 3 plots
of land. This resulted in reduction of trade receivables by US$ 5 miillion, loss on settlement of US$ 1.5 million and recovery of provision

amounting to US$ 2 million against the receivable balance.

16 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

31 December

31 December

2018 2012

Dividend income 528 529
Murabaha profits 352 248
Gain 45 _
925 7

17 INCOME FROM ADVISORY SERVICES

Income from advisory fees mainly represent fees earned by the Group with respect to project structuring for related parties.

18 NET INCOME FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

31 December

31 December

2018 2012

Contract income 13.185 15.402
Contract costs (12.421) (12.235)
764 3.167

The contract costs include depreciation amounting to US$ 239 thousand (2012: US$ 252 thousand) (note 10).
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

19 STAFF COSTS

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
Salaries and benefits 4.247 4.262
Other staff expenses 338 1.538
Reversal of ESOP scheme charge (note 19.1) - (537)
4.585 5.263

Note 19.1

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s management reviewed the vesting condition requirements of the Group’s
employee share option scheme (“ESOP”) and revised the number of equity instruments expected to vest, based on the best probability
estimates of the Group’s employees meeting the service and non-market based performance condition requirements of the ESOP
Scheme, revisions in the probability estimates resulted in a reversal of US$ 404 thousand. Further, reversal of US$ 133 thousand was
recognised due to forfeiture of share awards on non-satisfaction of service conditions.

Staff costs include expenses of US$ 7 thousand relating to equity settled share-based payment transactions for the year ended 31
December 2013 (31 December 2012: US$ 91 thousand).

20 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
Rent, rates and taxes 1.057 1.329
Legal and professional consultancy 724 789
Advertising and marketing 358 302
Board member expenses 354 460
Other expenses 600 1.009
3.093 3.889
21 PROVISION - NET
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Provision for case compensation (note 8.1) 3.288 -
Provision for impaired receivables (note 6) 1.888 1.061
Provision write back against receivables (note 6) (1.990) -
Provision for impaired investments - net (note 7) 1.743 2.274
4.929 3.335

39  Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013



Wyl Wand gl
FAP jaowmga Pl @8 dgniioll &) saagoll ddlell wlibdl Jga wlalayyl
(dpaypoll whlgall QUG diguo &l

alyil g8 ol yasaolly guwlwll wugaidl

e olll &4y dll ol glols Ggba Ul Milell &) Jasll géla dowdy abyll o pauwl) yasaslly Gawlwll Lun il flo wluial iy
1y Lo il JUs d05l8)] ol s a2) anjoll hungioll

(A juowga Pl (01 SWETTURY of

(9,r€) (€9€P) Aol gl - aindd ol a4 il el Ggia 5J) 6ilsdl 6)luall
FAEANP FAENAP (\QUDL_J) didl ylaig QJI_\J@QQ_Ojl_OJlro.m_LuUI 2] anjoll hgioll
(EIV) (1%3) d4y0l wilidw — e &jgoll @yl

gwlwll o) 8)lusl) JSloo uaesoll ) 8)luall 18 @by (aseail) asye (g4t A8 dyale ool &yl 440l 5a) 3293 o]
Glloleollg &8lell ¢ili Q@lphil 6 aun)i

o0 360 3905 93 gl loyle Jhyuioll o om) @4 glao)l Wla pilg éegonoll 8)la) yudao clacly (urwaidl Jaomluol (o ddllsll wls @lpall @i
m)leubhmJ|@.Q9.\.og aycpidl wldJl uo ;Lﬁ_cig dcgonol) Wl &o a4y iuiio dombno JA oy dodall wls il omdud

8=l i bkl fo Glloleoll hgjiilg agiu

vulao J18 (40 610iz0ll Ingpiillg agiull ghe by &bl ladlocl ron ddllell wls Ghall o vldlellg wlyiyig wlloleo (54 dcgonoll Jaas
ol gl 0283 ) digorro yue diull dylo 58 doilell 61m)0l ¢)) dcgonoll dyaliell Jlocll (o ollel 8)g410)l 61m)llg cilloleoll cunis o)lall
sl go dllag daiio g ddllell wls Wil go wilsleoll &ron Yl aiyaoll ol gl &illall poill gl ddllell 93 Win i (o wlilos i dcgonoll
Aoino &yileiS] s ano

1P G gl oy 8 il wipo. gl g il

rr

re

€.



40

Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

22 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year attributable to equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Loss attributable to the equity
shareholders of the parent for the year (4.943) (9.024)
Weighted average number of shares
. L 284. 284,

outstanding at the beginning and end of the year 858 G859
Earnings per share - US cents (1.74) (3.17)

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares, hence the diluted loss per share and basic loss per share are
identical.

23 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise major shareholders, directors of the Group, entities owned or controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by them and companies affiliated by virtue of shareholding in common with that of the Group and Shari’a Supervisory Board
members and external auditors.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The Group enters into transactions, arrangements and agreements with its related parties in the ordinary course of business at terms
and conditions approved by the Board of Directors. The above mentioned transactions and balances arose from the ordinary course
of business of the Group. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured. The Group did not provide or receive any guarantee
for any related party payables or receivables. All related party exposures are performing and are free of any provision for possible credit
losses.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

23 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The related party balances included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Key Key
management Significant management Significant
«» | Associates personnel/ | shareholders » Associates personnel/ | shareholders
2 and Shari'a / entities in Total 3 and Shari‘a / entities in Total
ol joint board which ol g joint board which
% venture members/ | directors are % venture members/ | directors are
@ external interested @ external interested
[} . w .
auditors auditors
Assets
Irade and : 30.567 316 5251 | 36.134 | - 11.659 89 23285 | 35.033
other receivables
Irade and other 504 374 150 1168 | 2196 | - . 2 5748 | 5750
payables
The related party transactions included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Key Key
management Significant management Significant
@ Associates personnel/ | shareholders @ Associates personnel/ | shareholders
D and Sharia / entities in Total D and Sharia / entities in Total /
o joint board which otal | © joint board which
o . o .
o venture members/ | directors are o venture members/ | directors are
3 external interested % external interested
auditors auditors
Income
Income
from - 814 56 4.381 | 5.251 - 422 12 1.386 | 1.820
advisory ' ' ' '
services
Net income
from
construction - (23) 27 1.138 | 1.142 - 670 (43) 1.011 | 1.638
contracts
Other
income - 260 - 48 308 - 162 - - 162
- 1.051 83 5.567 | 6.701 - 1.254 (31) 2.397 | 3.620
Expenses
Staff costs
vear 318 - 2.604 - | 2.922 504 30 2.875 234 | 3.643
General and
administrative 83 78 194 48 403 103 30 200 234 567
expenses
401 78 2.798 48 | 3.325 504 60 3.075 468 | 4.210
(Loss) /
income for the (83) 973 (111) 5519 | 6.298 | (504) 1.224 (231) 2.163 | 3.053
year
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Inovest B.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in US$000’s)

23 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012

Salaries and other benefits 2.438 2.530
End of service benefits 166 345
2.604 2.875

24 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments. A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other

business segments. For management purposes, the Group is organised into four major business segments.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those applied in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Transactions between segments are conducted at

estimated market rates on an arm’s length basis.

Segment information is disclosed as follows:

31 December 2013
Investment Development Property
and Construction and sale of and facility Eliminations Total
related Contracts industrial management o@
services plots services

Net revenues from 5.006 765 4.992 983 - 11.746
external customers - 192 28 81 (801) -
Inter-segment 614 299 10 2 . 925
transactions
Share of (losses)/profits
from investment in
a joint venture and (966) - 65 - - (901)
associates
(Note 6)
Other income 145 92 - - 237
Total revenue 4.799 1.348 5.095 1.066 (301) 12.007
Share of (losses)/

) (11.726) 446 6.305 224 (192) (4.943)
profits
Segment assets 273.161 30.310 65.058 3.174 (78.594) 293.109
Segment liabilities 65.377 9.065 57.519 1.819 (6.956) 126.824

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

24 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

31 December 2012
Development Property
;T}ff;gfgg Construction and sale of and facility Eliminations Total
. Contracts industrial management ola
services }
plots services
Net revenues from
396 3.167 2.351 820 - 6.734
external customers
Inter-segment
rseg - 381 : 148 (529) :
transactions
| f
eeme o 567 196 11 3 - 777
investments
Share of (losses)/
profits
from investment in a
joint 722 - 161 - - 883
venture and
associates
(Note 6)
Other income 68 9 106 - - 183
Total revenue 1.758 3.753 2.629 971 (529) 8.577
Segment profit (11.599) 1.942 774 240 (381) (9.024)
Segment assets 273.640 31.843 63.266 2.107 (78.315) 292.541
Segment liabilities 59.126 8.604 62.032 976 (9.418) 121.320

25 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Credit-related commitments include commitments to extend guarantees and acceptances which are designed to meet the requirements
of the Group’s customers. Guarantees and acceptances commit the Group to make payments to third parties on behalf of customers

in certain circumstances.

The Group has the following credit related commitments:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Guarantees 17.992 9.069

The Group has fully provided for against the guarantee amounting to US$ 3.4 million (31 December 2012: US$ 3.4 million).

31 December 31 December
2013 2012

Future minimum lease payments:
Within one year 755 961
After one year but not more than five years 2.311 2.857
More than five years 50.105 50.105
Total 53.171 53.923

26 FIDUCIARY ASSETS

The assets managed on behalf of customers, to which the Group does not have any legal title are not included in the consolidated
statement of financial position. At 31 December 2013, the carrying value of such assets is US$ 282 million (31 December 2012: US$
293 million).
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is defined as the combination of severity and frequency of potential loss over a given time horizon and is inherent in the Group’s
activities. Risk can be expressed in the dimensions of potential severity of loss (magnitude of impact) and potential loss frequency
(likelihood of occurrence). Risk management is the process by which the Group identifies key risks, sets consistent understandable
risk measures, chooses which risks to reduce, which to increase and by what means, and establishes procedures to monitor the
resulting risk position. Risk management is the discipline at the core of every financial institution and encompasses all the activities
that affect its risk profile. It involves identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling risks to ensure that optimum value is
created for the shareholders through an optimum return on equity by an appropriate trade-off between risk and return.

Effective risk management is the cornerstone of capital structure. The vision of risk management is to address all
aspects of risk which the Group may be exposed to. The Group’s risk function is independent of lines of business
and the Head of Risk is appointed by the Board Risk Committee, who then report to the Board of Directors. The key
role of the risk management function is defining, identifying and reducing risks, and being independent and objective.

The Group has exposure to risks, which include credit, market, liquidity, reputation, compliance and operational risks. Market risk
includes currency, equity price and profit rate risk. Taking risk is core to the financial business. The Group’s aim is to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk governance

The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework and reviewing its
risk management policies and procedures. The risks both at portfolio and transactional levels are managed and controlled through
the Board Risk Committee.

a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is defined as the potential that a borrower or counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in accordance with the agreed
terms. The goal of credit risk management is to maximize the Group’s risk-adjusted rate of return by maintaining credit exposures
within acceptable parameters. The Group has well-defined policies and procedures for identifying, measuring, monitoring and
controlling credit risk in all the Group’s activities.

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to on-balance sheet credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit
exposure, is not significant.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as a result of another party to
a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract.

The table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of financial position.
The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of collateral agreements, but after impairment
provisions, where applicable.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a) Credit risk (continued)

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements (continued)

Gross Gross
maximum maximum
exposure exposure

2013 2012

Mudaraba and murabaha financing - 3.760
Trade and other receivables 65.730 73.348
65.730 77.108

Commitments and contingent liabilities 17.992 9.069
Total 83.722 86.177

ii)  Aging of past due but not impaired facilities
The following table summarises the aging of past due but not impaired assets as of:
31 December 2012
- _ . years and 3
months 3-6 months 6-12 years 1-3 above Total
Irace and other 4125 21.813 782 50| 26779
receivables
4.125 21.813 782 59 26.779
31 December 2012
months 3-6 months 6-12 years 1-3 years and 3 Total
above
Irads and other 4.244 27.933 241 - | 32418
receivables

4.244 27.933 241 - 32.418

The Group’s trade and other receivable amounting to US$ 24.08 million (31 December 2012: US$ 24.18 million) are secured against
lease hold rights over the underlying land.

Trade and other receivables amounting to US$ 11.03 million (31 December 2012: US$ 13.02 million) have been classified as individually
impaired.

45 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2013



Gyl Gandgil

FAF o Pl g8 &milodl &uud) 6aag0)l ddloll wlibdl Jga wialayll
(dpaypoll whlgall QUG diguo &l

(6035) Jhlaollylal rv
(d05) YloiSVI phlao (i

JOSETYNEPYC

Olowl yudi lad (g4 loaic gl gdl2all ol 8l yubi 58 dia bl (59 ol doylivio dylad dauiil 98 dloleioll Wlall Jaai loaic wlisyill jmlas
Gl wlpi gl gl auwlw gl 4alnidl i jop dla $8 gl Jaudy 5l gadleil ilolidl dg)l gle laj)rbo Jom) loo dyalnidll
Gebnll gl G2l e 8 G wlidy i) agan &Agg 6poiuo )9y paliell &udljo Ul Hloidll palio) laijla] (g9 dcgonoll G

dyclinll wlelaslly @8l 9l Bl s degonoll wlayei) Julad gl loyd

(A juowuga Pl AP joouuga Pl
Sl [ } b | B
o wbglao | wlagago | 7 wbglao | wlagago
592l oulall
9,.19 ICLPr. fof AN 1v,99r IN,A9QF rerIv Ul daloo
Sl yudao
- - Paoq - 9.9l e1var Ve HaoJga
CIEYISEVIEN]
. - o = - - il Jos 58l
9,19 ICLPr. rar,oél 1v,99r INMAre rarl.a
(I joowuga Pl [ Ly SWETTURY of
t_' }JJ ubgllno ulagago u }JJ ubgllho ulagago
agelinll lnadll
9,19 1V, IPI 19r,Ava v,Qar IIA, Q0P 19€,-.9 @Jl_o_c
- [ AN 990 - V,AI Q9. o)loc jue
9,19 IrLer. rar,oél 1v,Qar IFMAre rarl.qa
Gowll phlao (i

Jolge (59 sl b alao CE) ng_UJJI}JQL:_O r(lm_UJ.”)LQ_UJlg duall wllesl \Q}_DJLQ_UJ|9 aJ)JUL?_w| @9 wblaill o Ggull palho aidi (G
Loy hoing gl adloll wilgall oy gl dcgonoll Jas 15§ ol o wll jlewl jhlaog auljlewl phlaog dlesll jhlao Jio Goull palao

Jalaoll kj\l.t@).:.o Aile (G0 &o dguboll juleoll ot Geuudl Jalro wlayei &bliog §)lal go Gguull alio §)lal (o Ganll )

&Pl = pblao (1

U audhjleuwl o8 il Gub pe guluw Jadu plo Ggw alell ladlgal dlslell dossll gl dcgonoll &yl yh dalso g aull y=uw yblao

aupdl j=w jlalio) duwlun dcgonoll wbgllhog wlagago U dcgonoll juisi

o=l phlas (F

awlwll do <l 6\5.1}_0J|)J9;J| dcgonoll iz auiall ulesll @yn jlowl W9 wlui) daii alloll 8lall i1 8 Ll lalao g do=ll jalao
g gag=udl Judlg gugaddl ol @l Load ayinll wllesl uLﬂ}&_J wdla ch.o:m.ll G Mg TP jaouns Pl (59 Llod &oraiuuoll
ulay=i gl dymgn doc palho il gddbg kj\ﬁJ}DJIJJgAJbW@}DJ'UJ,o&”&LoJu[Q agdug Al lpadl clidiwb .sdlloll oy allg gungall
fgpmga e il iygall lipall degonoll

1P G gl oy 8 il wipo. gl g il

€



46

Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a) Credit risk (continued)

iy Concentration risk

Concentration risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar economic activities or activities in the same
geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Group seeks to manage its concentration risk by establishing and

constantly monitoring geographic and industry wise concentration limits.

The Group’s exposure analysed on geographic regions and industry sectors is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Assets Liabilities ant!hgent Assets Assets ant!pgent
liabilities liabilities
Geographic region:
Kingdom of Bahrain 246.317 116.893 17.992 252.882 121.320 9.069
Other GCC countries 46.792 9.931 - 39.159 - -
Rest of the world - - - 500 - -
293.109 126.824 17.992 292.541 121.320 9.069
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Assets Liabilities ant!rjgent Assets Assets Cpnt!r‘\gent
liabilities liabilities
Industry sector:
Real estate 194.009 118.963 17.992 192.876 117.131 9.069
Non real estate 99.100 7.861 - 99.665 4,189 -
293.109 126.824 17.992 292.541 121.320 9.069

b) Market risk

Market risk arises from fluctuations in profit rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is the risk that changes in
market risk factors, such as currency risk, profit rates and equity prices will effect the Group’s income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return on risk.

1) Profit rate risk

Profit risk is the risk that the Group’s profitability or fair value of its financial instruments will be adversely affected by the changes in profit
rates. The Group’s assets and liabilities are not considered by management to be sensitive to profit rate risk.

2) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group views
the United States Dollar as its functional currency. As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had net foreign currency exposure
in respect of Bahraini Dinars, Saudi Riyals, Kuwaiti Dinars and United Arab Emirates Dirhams. Except for Kuwaiti Dinars, the currencies
are pegged to the United States Dollar and thus are considered not to represent significant currency risk. The Group’s exposure to
Kuwaiti Dinars is considered minimal.
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as the result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value
of individual stocks. As the Group has no quoted equity investments, the Group is not exposed to this risk. The Group has unquoted
investments carried at cost less provision for impairment where the impact of changes in equity prices will only be reflected when the
investment is sold or deemed to be impaired, when the consolidated statement of income will be impacted, or when a third party
transaction in the investment gives a reliable indication of fair value which will be reflected in owners’ equity.

c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential inability of the Group to meet cash flows of its maturing obligations to a counterparty. Liquidity risk
management seeks to ensure that the Group has the ability, under varying scenarios, to fund increases in assets and meet maturing

obligations as they arise. Management of the Group is responsible for its liquidity management.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2013 based on expected
periods to cash conversion from the consolidated statement of financial position date:

Up to 1t03 3to6 6 months 1tob 5to 10 Over No fixed

1 Month months month to 1 year years years 10years  maturity fotl
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8.586 8.59I - - - - - - 1rarr
Trade and other receivables - - - 2.933 57.497 - - - 60.430
Investments - - - - 23.430 - - - 23.430
Investment in a joint venture/ ) ) ) ) 08.045 ) ) B 08.245
associates
Investment in real estate - - - - 81.114 - - - 81.114
Properties under development - 5.638 - - - 5.638
Property, plant and ) ) ) ) ) ) ) 7075 7075
equipment
Total assets 8.586 8.591 - 2.933 265.924 - - 7.075 293.109
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables - 2.898 2.898 4134 26.832 - 50.105 - 86.867
ljara and murabaha 688 2500 13557  19.896  3.316 . . - 30957
financing
Total liabilities 688 5.398 16.455 24.030 30.148 - 50.105 - 126.824
Net liquidity gap 7.898 3.193 (16.455) (21.097)  235.776 - (560.105) 7.075 166.285
Cumulative liquidity gap 7.898  11.091 (5.364) (26.461) 209.315  209.315 159.210 166.285
Contingencies and ) ) ) ) 17.992 ) ) ) 17.992

commitments
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2012 based on expected
periods to cash conversion from the consolidated statement of financial position date:

Up to 1t03 3to6 6 months 1t05 51010 Over No fixed Total
1 Month months month to 1 year years years 10years  maturity

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5.490 619 - - - - - - 6.109
I\_/Iudar_aba and murabaha ) 3.760 B ) ) B . B 3.760
financing
Trade and other
receivables - - - 67.946 - - 67.946
Investments - - - - 26.611 - - - 26.611
Investment in a joint

. - - - - 90.811 - - - 90.811
venture/associates
Investment in real estate - - - 89.598 - - - 89.598
Property, plant and ) B B } . B . 7.706 7.706
equipment
Total assets 5.49. 4.379 - - 274966 - - 7.706  292.541
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables - 9.252 - 22.695 - - 50.105 - 82.052
ljara and murabaha
. ) - - - 11.937 27.331 - - - 39.268
financing
Total liabilities - 9.252 - 34.632 27.331 - 50.105 - 121.320
Net liquidity gap 5.490 (4.873) - (34.632) 247.635 - (60.105) 7.706  171.221
g:;”“'at've liquidity 5.490 617 617 (34015 213.620 213620 163515 171.221
Contingencies and ) ) . ) 9.069 . ) . 9.069

commitments
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Inovest B.S.C.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in US$000’s)

27 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
d) Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. This definition includes legal risk, but excludes strategic and reputational risk.

e) Other risks

Regulatory risk
Regulatory risk is defined as the risk of non-compliance with regulatory and legal requirements in the Kingdom of Bahrain and the State
of Kuwait. The Group’s Compliance Department is currently responsible for ensuring all regulations are adhered to.

Legal risk
Legal risk is defined as the risk of unexpected losses from transactions and contracts not being enforceable under applicable laws or
from unsound documentation. The Group deals with several external law firms to support it in managing the legal risk.

Reputation risk

Regulatory risk is defined as the risk that negative perception regarding the Group’s business practices or internal controls, whether
true or not, will cause a decline in the Group’s investor base and lead to costly litigations which could have an adverse impact on the
liquidity of the Group. The Board of Directors examines the issues that are considered to have reputation repercussions for the Group
and issues directives to address these.

28 SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group intends to discharge its social responsibilities through donations to charitable causes and organisations.

29 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. Such reclassification
did not affect net income, total assets, total liabilities or owners’ equity of the Group as previously reported.
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